
  

           
 

    CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

Monday, August 7, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers/Virtual Hybrid Attendance Meeting   

Zoom Meeting ID:  871 9795 4629 
 

****A G E N D A**** 
 

1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Invocation 
4) Roll Call 
5) Additions to the Agenda 
6) Public Comment (3-minute limit) 
7) Consideration of Minutes of July 24, 2023 
8) Old Business 
9) New Business 

A.  Police Department Update 
B.  DDA Director Appointment & Contract 
C.  Resolution 23-27 Trek the Yoop 2023 
D.  Resolution 23-28 Richard Crane Memorial Truck Show 2023 
E.  Resolution 23-29 Strait U.P. Jeep Creep 2023 
F.  LBE Fitness Center Repair 
G. City Manager Training August 

10) Consideration of Bills  
11) Public Comment (3-minute limit) 
12) Management Report 
13) Committee Reports 
14) Council Member Comments                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
 
 

City of St. Ignace is an equal opportunity employer and provider  
 



 
City of St. Ignace 

Council Proceedings 
(Unofficial) 

 
A Regular Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, July 24, 2023, in the City 
Hall Council Chambers as a hybrid attendance meeting with Zoom video conference available.  
Mayor LaLonde called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  
Councilmember Gustafson led the invocation.                                         
 
PRESENT FROM CITY COUNCIL:  Councilmembers Cronan, Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, 
Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, and Councilmember Williford. 
 
ABSENT:  Councilmember Fullerton.  Council excused Councilmember Fullerton for this 
meeting (7/10/23) due to being out of town. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Andrea Insley, City Clerk-Treasurer; Charles Palmer, City Attorney; Scott 
Marshall, DDA Director; Cathy Lamb, Facility & Recreation Manager. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA  
Mayor LaLonde – Appointment to the St Ignace Area EMS (SAEMS) Authority. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (3-min limit) 
No public comment was received. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE JULY 10, 2023, REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING: 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve the 
minutes of the July 10, 2023, Regular Council meeting as presented.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
A.  TREASURER SUPPORT UPDATED AGREEMENT 
 
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley requested Council’s approval to extend the agreement with Renee 
Vonderwerth to assist the City Clerk/Treasurer’s office with the Chart of Account update project 
through December 31, 2023. 
It was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve 
the Treasurer Support Agreement as presented. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem  
         St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford and Cronan. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A.  TIE MICHIGAN TEAL CAMPAIGN 
 



Mayor LaLonde introduced Diann Glaze-Helbling, the Event Manager for the Michigan Ovarian 
Cancer Alliance, to present the Tie Michigan Teal Campaign.  The event is to bring awareness 
to National Ovarian Cancer Awareness Month and to display teal ribbons tied on lamp posts 
throughout town for the month of September. 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve 
recognizing the Tie Michigan Teal Campaign. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers  
         Williford, Cronan and Gustafson. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
B.  TREK THE MIGHTY YOOP 2023 RESOLUTION 23-27 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to postpone 
consideration of the Resolution until a St. Ignace Visitors Bureau representative could be in 
attendance.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
C.  LITTLE BEAR EAST (LBE) ARENA CIRCULATION PUMP REPLACEMENT 
 
Recreation & Facility Manager Lamb informed Council that the Little Bear East facility is in need 
of a heating and cooling system replacement.  Due to the extensive repairs that the facility has 
already undergone this year, Manager Lamb requested Council’s approval to replace only the 
circulation pump as a short-term repair until funds can be secured for the entire replacement 
project.  The funds of $3,190 would be recorded from the fund balance. 
It was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve 
purchasing a new circulation pump replacement from Automated Comfort Controls (ACC) for 
the Little Bear East facility at $3,190. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, 
         Gustafson and Mayor LaLonde. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
D.  FINANCIALS JUNE 2023 
 
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley presented the June 2023 financials to Council.  Councilmember 
Gustafson inquired if the street paving expenses, listed in the Bills to Approve, were included in 
the budget listed for funds 202 and 203. 
It was moved by Councilmember Cronan, seconded by Councilmember Williford, to approve the 
June 2023 financials as presented. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde 
         and Councilmember Pelter. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ADDITION TO THE AGENDA 



Mayor LaLonde – Appointment to the St Ignace Area EMS (SAEMS) Authority. 
Mayor LaLonde requested Council’s approval to appoint Scott Marshall, as City Manager, to the 
SAEMS Authority as Secretary, while the Mayor will be listed as an Alternate member. 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, seconded by Councilmember Pelter, to approve 
appointing Scott Marshall to the SAEMS Authority and recognizing Mayor LaLonde as an 
Alternate member. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley informed Council that there were a few invoices that had corrected 
amounts, one invoice was removed and one invoice was added since meeting information was 
distributed.  Mayor LaLonde inquired about the purchase of lights and gloves from BAM Tools 
and requested such items be considered for purchase locally. 
It was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, to approve 
paying the bills in the amount of $425,197.28. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Cronan, Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor 
         Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (3 min limit) 
No public comment was received. 
 
MANAGEMENT REPORT 
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley discussed the progress of the 2022 audit with Anderson Tackman.  
Council requested to schedule the Audit presentation during the night of a Regular Council 
meeting on August 7th or August 21st. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Planning Commission – Chairperson Dayrell-Hart gave Council an update on the recent items 
the Planning Commission has deliberated. 
 
Recreation Advisory Committee – the meeting minutes for 7-12-23 were provided and Facility & 
Recreation Manager Lamb announced the meetings will occur every other month with the next 
one scheduled for September 13th at 6:30 p.m. 
 
SAEMS Authority - minutes of the 6-27-23 meeting were provided to Council. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
Councilmember comments were received. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:29 p.m. 
 
______________________________                          _________________________________ 
       William LaLonde, Mayor                                       Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 



 

 1 

 

 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this    ___  day of _August, 2023, by and 

between the Downtown Development Authority of the City of St. Ignace, State of 

Michigan, hereinafter called “Employer,” as party of the first part, and Ryan Sigmon, 

hereinafter called “Employee”, as party of the second part, both of whom understand and 

agree as follows: 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ the services of said Employee as Director of the 

 DDA; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Governing Board of Employer hereinafter called 

 “Board”, to provide certain benefits, establish certain conditions of employment 

 and set working conditions of said Employer, and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Employer (1) to secure and retain the service of 

 Employee and provide inducement for him to remain in such employment, (2) to 

 make possible full work productivity by assuring Employee’s morale and peace of 

 mind with respect to future security, (3) to act as a deterrent against malfeasance   

 or dishonesty for personal gain on the part of Employee, and (4) to provide a just  

 means for terminating Employee’s services at such time as he may be unable  

 fully to discharge his duties or when Employer may otherwise desire to terminate 

 his duties or when Employer may otherwise desire to terminate his employ; and 

WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as Director of said DDA: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the 

 Parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. Duties: 

 Employer hereby agrees to employ said Ryan Sigmon as DDA Director to 

perform the functions and duties of said position, and to perform other legally permissible 

and proper duties and functions as the Employer shall from time-to-time assign. 

SECTION 2.  Term: 

A. Nothing in this agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the 

right of Board to terminate the services of Employee at any time, subject only 

to the provisions set forth in Section 4, paragraphs A and B, of this agreement. 

B. Nothing in this agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the 

right of the Employee to resign at any time from his position with Employer, 

subject only to the provision set forth in Section 4, paragraph C, of this 

agreement. 

C. Employee agrees to remain in the employ of Employer until December 31, 

2024 and neither to accept other employment nor to become employed by any 

other employer until said termination date, unless said termination date is 

affected as hereinafter provided.  The term “employed” shall not be construed 

to include occasional teaching, writing, consulting or military reserve service 



 

 2 

performed on employee’s time off, the same to be such so as not to be in any 

way conflicting to Employee’s general duties to Employer. 

D. In the event written notice is not given by either party 30 days prior to the 

termination date as herein provided, this agreement shall be extended on the 

same terms and conditions as herein provided, all for an additional one-year 

period unless one party gives 30 days written notice to the other party that the 

party does not wish to extend this agreement for an additional one-year term. 

SECTION 3.  Suspension: 

Employer may suspend Employee with full pay and benefits at any time during 

the term of this agreement, but only if: 

1. A majority of the Board and Employee agree, or 

2. After a public hearing, a majority of Board votes to suspend Employee for just 

cause provided, however, that employer shall have given written notice setting 

forth any charges at least ten days prior to such hearing by the Board members 

bringing such charges. 

SECTION 4. Termination and Severance Pay: 

A. In the event Employee is terminated by the Board before expiration of the 

term of employment while Employee is willing and able to perform his duties 

under this agreement, Employer agrees to pay Employee a lump sum cash 

payment equal to 2 months’ aggregate salary.  However, in the event 

Employee is terminated because of his conviction of any illegal act involving 

personal gain to him, Employer shall have no obligation to pay the aggregate 

severance sum designated in this paragraph. 

B. In the event Employer at any time during the term of this agreement reduces 

the salary or other financial benefits of Employee in a greater percentage than 

an applicable across-the-board reduction for all employees of Employer, or in 

the event Employer refuses, following written notice, to comply with any 

other provision benefiting Employee herein, or Employee resigns following a 

suggestion, whether formal or informal, by the Board that he resign, then 

Employee may, at his option, be deemed to be “terminated” at the date of such 

reduction or such refusal to comply within the meaning and context of the 

herein severance pay provision. 

C. In the event Employee voluntarily resigns his position with Employer before 

expiration of the aforesaid term of his employment, then Employee shall give 

Employer one (1) month notice in advance, unless the parties otherwise agree. 

D. In the event the DDA should cease to legally exist according to any federal, 

state or local ruling, the employee shall be considered to be terminated, unless 

his employment is assumed by the City of St. Ignace. 

SECTION 5.  Disability: 

If Employee is permanently disabled or is otherwise unable to perform his duties 

because of sickness, accident, injury, mental incapacity or health for a period of 

four successive weeks beyond any accrued sick leave, Employer shall have the 

option to terminate this agreement, subject to the severance pay requirements of 

Section 4, paragraph A.  Employee shall be further compensated for any accrued 

benefits to which he is entitled under this Agreement. 

 



 

 3 

 

 

SECTION 6.  Compensation: 

Employer agrees to pay Employee for his services rendered pursuant hereto: 

A. SALARY: Salary is based on a minimum 40 hours per week (2,080 hours 

annually). 

Employer agrees to pay Employee an annual base salary of $55,000, payable 

in installments at the same time as other employees of the City of St. Ignace 

are paid.   

B. Employer agrees to review said base salary and/or other benefits of Employee 

in such amounts and to such extent as the Board may determine that is 

desirable to do so on the basis of an annual salary review. 

C. VACATION TIME: Employee shall accrue ten (10) paid vacation days, of 

eight (8) hours each, on an annual basis. Each subsequent year of the contract, 

Employee will receive one additional day of vacation. Vacation accumulation 

is capped at 200 hours (25 days). All unused vacation time will be paid upon 

severance of Employment with the Employer at a prevailing rate. 

D. SICK TIME: Employee shall be entitled to paid sick time credited at a rate of 

one (1) sick day per month, not to exceed twelve (12) per calendar year, with 

one hundred five (105) days maximum accumulation. A day is defined as 

eight (8) hours. Unused sick time will be paid upon severance of Employment 

with the Employer at fifty (50) percent.  If employee is discharged under the 

terms of this agreement, no payment for unused sick leave will be paid. 

E. PERSONAL TIME: Employee shall receive one (1) eight (8) hour personal 

day per calendar year. Personal leave is non-accumulative and lost if not used 

within the calendar year. Employee’s birthday is also granted as a personal 

day to be used within a reasonable time of the actual birthday. 

F. HOLIDAYS: Employer recognizes ten (10) paid holidays: New Year’s Day, 

Good Friday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving 

Day, Day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, and New Year’s 

Eve. Should a holiday fall on a regularly scheduled day off, the nearest 

regularly scheduled work day shall be considered the holiday. Employee 

agrees that he may be required to work on a holiday if operational needs 

demand it. 

G. MEDICAL INSURANCE: The Employee and his dependents shall be 

eligible for all health, dental, and vision insurance benefits for which other 

City employees are eligible, per Employer group health insurance plan, upon 

the first day of employment. Employees electing to receive medical coverage 

are required to pay a set contribution bi-weekly through payroll. Employees 

opting out of medical coverage shall receive an in-lieu-of payment in 

conjunction with their regular payroll cycle. 

H. RETIREMENT: Employer agrees to execute all necessary agreements 

provided by MERS and, in addition to the base salary paid by the Employer to 

the Employee, Employer agrees to pay the maximum allowable amount for 

MERS C1 Benefit Plan Division 11, into MERS on Employee’s behalf, and to 

transfer ownership to succeeding employers upon Employee’s resignation or 



 

 4 

discharge, if that subsequent employer participates in a MERS pension. 

Employee may choose to participate in available 457 plan(s).  Limited buyout 

for sick/vacation time upon retirement and/or severance of employment is 

capped at 400 hours total between both sick and vacation accrual.  

 

SECTION 7.   Performance Evaluation: 

A. The Employer may review and evaluate the performance of Employee at least 

annually, and more frequently if deemed necessary by Employer.  Said review 

and evaluation shall be in accordance with specific criteria developed jointly 

by Employer and Employee.  Further, the Employer shall provide the 

Employee with a summary written statement of findings and provide an 

adequate opportunity for Employee to discuss his evaluation with them. 

B. Annually, the Employer and Employee may define such goals and 

performance objectives which they determine necessary for the proper 

operation of the DDA and in the attainment of the objectives of Employer and 

shall further establish a relative priority among those various goals and 

objectives, said goals and objectives to be reduced to writing.  They shall 

generally be attainable within the time limitations as specified and the annual 

operating and capital budgets and appropriations provided. 

C. In effecting the provisions of this Section, Employer and Employee mutually 

agree to abide by the provisions of applicable law, and to the provisions of the 

DDA Ordinance. 

 

 

SECTION 8.  Hours of Work: 

A. It is understood Employee will be expected to devote a total of forty (40) 

hours per week during a regular workweek. 

B. Employee will keep a regular schedule of office hours each week.  

C. It is recognized that Employee must occasionally devote time outside of 

normal office hours for business of the Employer, and to that end, Employee 

will be allowed to adjust his work schedule for the week accordingly. No 

compensatory time shall be earned or accumulated. 

SECTION 9.  Outside Activities: 

 Employee shall not spend more than twenty (20) hours per week in non-employer 

connected business as defined in paragraph 2C without the prior approval of Employer. 

SECTION 10.  Automobile and Cellular Phone: 

 When Employee uses his automobile for accomplishing work described in his job 

description, the Employer will pay a sum per mile, based on City of St. Ignace mileage 

allowance rate, for travel outside of the city, directly to the Employee. In addition, 

Employee shall receive a $50.00 per month allowance for his cellular phone service. 

SECTION 11.  Dues and Subscription: 

 Employer agrees to budget and to pay for the professional dues and subscriptions 

of Employee necessary for his continuation and full participation in national, regional, 

state and local associations and organizations necessary and desirable for his continued 

professional participation, growth and advancement, and for the good of Employer. 

SECTION 12.  Professional Development: 



 

 5 

A. Employer hereby agrees to budget for and to pay travel and subsistence 

expense of Employee for professional and official travel, meetings, civic club 

membership, and occasions adequate to continue the professional 

development of Employee and to adequately pursue necessary official and 

other functions for Employer, and such other national, regional, state and local 

governmental groups and committees of which Employee serves as a member. 

B. Employer also agrees to budget and to pay for the travel and subsistence 

expenses of Employee for short courses, institutes and seminars that are 

necessary for his professional development and for the good of Employer. 

C. Employee agrees to obtain prior approval of the DDA Board for planned 

professional development activities, and he will be prepared to provide a 

subsequent report to the DDA Board on what was learned. 

D. Professional development is understood to be a benefit to the Employer as 

well as Employee.  Attendance at Michigan Downtown Association 

workshops and other beneficial training is required. 

SECTION 13.  General Expenses: 

 Employer recognizes that certain expenses of a non-personal and generally  

job-affiliated in nature may be incurred by Employee, and hereby agrees to reimburse or 

to pay said general expenses, and the Clerk is hereby authorized to disburse such monies 

upon receipt of duly executed expense or petty cash vouchers, receipts, statements or 

personal affidavits. 

SECTION 14.  Indemnification: 

 Employer shall defend, save harmless and indemnify Employee against any tort, 

professional liability claim, demand, or other legal action, whether groundless or 

otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of 

Employee’s duties.  Employer will compromise and settle any such claim or suit and pay 

the amount of any settlement of judgment rendered thereon.  Willful torts and criminal 

acts are excepted. 

SECTION 15.  Bonding: 

 Employer shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of 

Employee under any law or ordinance. 

SECTION 16.  Other Terms and Conditions of Employment: 

A. The Employer, in consultation with the DDA Director, shall fix any such other 

terms and conditions of employment as it may determine from time to time, 

provided such terms and conditions are not inconsistent with or in conflict 

with the provisions of this agreement, the DDA Ordinance or any other law. 

B. All provisions of the DDA Ordinance, regulations and rules of Employer, and 

working conditions as now exist or hereafter may be amended, also shall 

apply to Employee as they would to employees of the City of St. Ignace. 

SECTION 17.  No Reduction of Benefits: 

 Employer shall not at any time during the term of this agreement reduce the 

salary, compensation or other financial benefits of Employee, except to the degree of 

such a reduction across-the-board for all employees of the employer. 

SECTION 18.  Notices: 

 Notices pursuant to this agreement shall be given by deposit in the custody of the 

United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 



 

 6 

1. EMPLOYER:  City of St. Ignace Downtown Development Authority (DDA)  

       396 North State Street 

       St. Ignace, MI 49781 

 2.  EMPLOYEE:    Ryan Sigmon 

           ADDRESS 

           

Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this agreement may be personally served in the 

same manner as is applicable to civil judicial practice.  Notice shall be deemed given as 

of the date of personal service or as of the date of deposit of such written notice in the 

course of transmission in the United States Postal Service. 

SECTION 20.  General Provisions: 

A. This agreement, together with the attached job description, shall constitute the 

entire agreement between the parties. 

B. This agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at 

law and executors of employee. 

C. This agreement is effective commencing August    , 2023. 

D. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this agreement is held 

unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this agreement, or 

portion thereof, shall be deemed severable, and shall not be affected and shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereunto set their hands on the _____ day of 

______August, 2023. 

 

 

WITNESS:      DDA/CITY OF ST. IGNACE 

 

 

______________________________                       ____________________________ 

                                                                                   Heather Aukeman, DDA Chairman  

                  

WITNESS:      EMPLOYEE 

 

 

______________________________                       ____________________________ 

                 Ryan Sigmon 



 CITY OF ST. IGNACE 
 RESOLUTION 23-27  

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE TREK THE MIGHTY YOOP 2023 
 

The following Resolution was offered for adoption by _________, supported by _________: 
 

 

WHEREAS: The St. Ignace Visitors Bureau requests permission to sponsor and 
conduct the “Trek the Mighty Yoop 2023”; and 

 

WHEREAS: This event requires the usage of the St. Ignace Little Bear East Arena and 
parking lots; and  

 
WHEREAS: Chapter 22 of the City of St. Ignace Code, the “Peddler’s Ordinance”, 

requires certain criteria be met for the event to be held; and 
 

WHEREAS:  It is understood that there may be fees for certain services if provided by 
the City; and 

 
WHEREAS: The St. Ignace City Council has determined that the St. Ignace Visitors 

Bureau does meet the criteria established in the various sections of 
Chapter 22; now therefore  

 

BE IT RESOLVED:  The St. Ignace City Council does approve Special Events status for Trek 
the Mighty Yoop 2023 on September 22 & 23, 2023; now further 

 
BE IT RESOLVED: The St. Ignace City Council does approve usage of the St. Ignace Little 

Bear East Arena and parking lots for this event on Friday, September 22, 
2023.   

 

Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:   
No:  
Absent:   
Resolution declared  
 
I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the St. Ignace City 
Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, July 24, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
           
____________________________________ 

            Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 

























































 

City of St. Ignace, MI 

 

Staff Report 
 

Agenda Date: 8/1/2023  Presenter:  Cathy Lamb 

Department: Recreation Dept. City Manager:  Acting City Manager - Andrea Insley 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Little Bear East Fitness Center Accident Repair 
    
 
 
BACKGROUND:  On 6/4/2023 at approximately 4:45pm a Little Bear East Fitness Center 
member was driving recklessly in the Fitness Center Parking Lot.  They lost control on the gravel 
and the vehicle they were driving crashed into the northwest corner of the building causing 
extreme damage to the exterior of the building and damage to the interior drywall respectively.  
The Fitness Center closed early that night, remained closed on 6/5/2023, and reopened after 
Brian Olsen reviewed the damages and deemed the building safe for entry on the afternoon of 
6/6/2023. 
 
 
 
FISCAL EFFECT:  Unexpected expense for building repair of Bid Total of $ 7,699.54. An 
Insurance Claim has been filed with the deductible at $1,000.00.  A Bid Advertisement was 
placed in the St. Ignace Newspaper Publication for the week of July 12-18, 2023 with a window 
to accept bids through July 24, 2023 – 2:00pm.  Only ONE (1) bid was submitted.  Several 
attempts to reach out to other contractors to submit bids were made without any reception: 
 
2 X 4 Construction   (906) 298-0149  Placed Bid   $ 7,699.54 
 
Matson Construction  (906) 430-7196 Came out to view the damages but never  

submitted a bid 
 

Markie Peterson   (906) 430-0522 Left Messages  No Return Contact 
 
Sliva Construction  (906) 430-1409 Left Messages  No Return Contact 
 
Dumas Construction  (906) 430-1492 Left Messages  No Return Contact 
  
Jimbo Musik   (906) 298-0629 Left Messages  No Return Contact 
 
 
 
 

396 N State Street 
St. Ignace, MI. 49781 
cityofstignace.com 

This form and any background material must be approved by the City Manager then delivered to the 

City Manager’s Office by 4:00 PM the Thursday prior to the Council Meeting.   



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION: Please see the Attached Documents: 
 
Property Claim / Incident Report – Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority 
Police Report – St. Ignace Police Department  
Pictures of accident / damage to building 
Copy of Bid Advertisement – St. Ignace Newspaper 
Bid submitted by 2 X 4 Construction - $ 7,699.54 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  With only ONE (1) Bid being submitted, it is recommended that we move 
forward with contracting 2 X 4 Construction to complete the repair project to the Little Bear East 
Fitness Center. 
 



 



CITY OF ST. IGNACE 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT   

LITTLE BEAR EAST COMMUNITY CENTER 

 
Bid Tabulation Fitness Center Accident Repair 

 
 

Bid Opening July 12, 2023 @ 2:00PM 
Bid Deadline July 24, 2023 @ 2:00PM 

 

 

2 X 4 Construction   (906) 298-0149  Placed Bid   $ 7,699.54 
 
Matson Construction  (906) 430-7196 Came out to view the damages but never  

submitted a bid 
 

Markie Peterson   (906) 430-0522 Left Messages  No Return Contact 
 
Sliva Construction  (906) 430-1409 Left Messages  No Return Contact 
 
Dumas Construction  (906) 430-1492 Left Messages  No Return Contact 
  
Jimbo Musik   (906) 298-0629 Left Messages  No Return Contact 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  With only ONE (1) Bid being submitted, it is recommended that we 
move forward with contracting 2 X 4 Construction to complete the repair project to the Little 
Bear East Fitness Center. 
 

 

 

 

 



 





PROPERTY CLAIM / INCIDENT REPORT 
Member’s Property Damage Only

Note:  Use this form 1) to report any claim involving damage to Member’s Property or 2) Property in Member’s Care, Custody, and Control.  
(1) Name of MMRMA Member: (2) Member Department:  (3) Member Department Phone #:   (4) Reported By: 

(5)  Exact Location of Claim/Incident: (6) Date of Claim/Incident:  (7) Time of Incident:  
  A.M.    P.M.  

(8) Date Reported By Department: 

 MEMBER PROPERTY DAMAGE      Claim        Notice Only  
(9) Property Damaged (Building): 

(10) Property Damage (Contents):

(11) Property Damage (Other): 

(12) Cause of Damage: 

(13)  Describe Damage:  

(14)  Estimate of Repair Cost: 
$ 

 (15)  Actual Repair Cost: 
$ 

(16) Contractor’s Name and Telephone #:  

(17) Subrogation Potential?  Yes    No 
Who Caused Damage? 
Name or Company Name: Address: Telephone #:  

(18) Name of Witness: Witness Address: Witness Telephone #: 

1) 

2) 

3) 

(19)   Photographs Taken?      Yes    No  

      Photographs Attached? Yes    No  

(20) Other Supporting Documents?         Yes    No 

        Supporting Documents Attached?   Yes    No 

(21)  Police Report #:  

 Police Report Attached?   Yes   No 

(22) Please describe in detail how the claim/incident occurred (attach any supporting data): 

(23)  Submitted By: (24)  Title: (25)  Date:  

FORWARD THIS REPORT TO:  MMRMA CLAIMS 
14001 Merriman, Livonia, MI  48154 

Telephone (734) 513-0300   FAX (734) 513-0318 



          

          

 

       



             

             

      



















Amazon July 2023 Statement $1,902.70

BC Pizza LBE Fab Friday 7/28/2023 $34.50

Belonga Excavating, LLC Community Action Water Line Repair $220.00

Blarney Castle Oil Company Marina Fuel $112,663.10

BSN Sports Soccer Goal Net $501.95

Denise and Dave Freed Lodging Reimbursement/Sewer $3,400.00

Ellen's Equipment Bobcat Bearing $503.92

GateHouse Media Michigan Holdings, Inc. LBE Rec Advertising $22.33

Harrell's LLC Golf Turf Supplies $344.19

Horst Distributing, Inc. Golf - Bag Rack $773.00

Hydrite WWTR Ferric $13,220.48

KSS Marina Supplies $163.79

Mackinac Ford Sales Rec Truck Repair $919.77

Management & Behavior Consultants, PLLC SIPD Employment Evaluations $880.00

Meyer Ace Hardware July 2023 Statement $1,138.78

Moran Township 2023 Summer Taxes $250.43

National Office Products July 2023 Statement $1,513.82

Paragon Laboratories WWTP Testing $223.40

Perfect Fit, LLC Weight Cables, Leg Cables $947.00

Precision Edge Outdoor Services LLC July 2023 Statement $5,220.00

Pro-Vision SIPD-Garment Rack $44.05

Safety Kleen Parts Washer Solvent $173.79

Spartan Distributors Golf Course Supplies $436.51

St Ignace Auto July 2023 Statement $314.71

Straits Building Center July 2023 Statement $5,816.02

The St. Ignace News July 2023 Statement $1,009.64

$152,637.88

Invoices for Approval

Monday, August 7, 2023


	01 Agenda 8-7-23
	07 - Consideration of Minutes of July 24th, 2023
	09B - DDA Director Contract August 2023
	09C - Resolution 23-28 Trek the Yoop 2023
	09D INCOMPLETE- Resolution 23-28 Richard Crane Memorial Truck Show 2023
	09E INCOMPLETE - Resolution 23-29 Strait U.P. Jeep Creep 2023
	09F - LBE Fitness Center Repair
	09G - City Manger Training August 13-16, 2023
	10 Council Bills List 8-7-2023

	RESET FORM: 
	1 Name of MCCRMA Member:      CITY OF ST IGNACE
	2 Member Department: REC. DEPARTMENT / LITTLE BEAR EAST ARENA AND COMMUNITY CENTER 
	3 Member Department Phone:        906-643-6081
	4 Reported By:    CATHY LAMB
	5  Exact Location of ClaimIncident:        275 MARQUETTE ST
       ST. IGNACE, MI 49781
	6 Date of ClaimIncident: 6/4/2023
	7 Time of Incident AM PM:    4:45
	undefined: Off
	undefined_2: On
	8 Date Reported By Department: 6/4/2023
	undefined_3: On
	undefined_4: Off
	9 Property Damaged Building: CORNER OF BUILDING AT FITNESS CENTER ENTRANCE RAN INTO WITH VEHICLE  - DENTED OUTSIDE OF BUILDING AND CAUSED DRYWALL DAMAGE TO INSIDE 
	10 Property Damage Contents: N/A
	11 Property Damage Other: INTERIOR DAMAGED TO DRYALL AT THE CORNER OF THE FITNESS CENTER ENTRANCE
	12 Cause of Damage: WRECKLESS DRIVING IN PARKING LOT - LOST CONTROL OF VEHICLE AND RAN INTO THE CORNER OF THE BUILDING
	13  Describe Damage: LARGE DENT TO FRONT CORNER OF THE BUILDING OF THE FITNESS CENTER ENTRANCE AND DRYWALL DAMAGE INSIDE
	14  Estimate of Repair Cost: 7,000.00 +/-
	15  Actual Repair Cost: TBD (OUT FOR BID/QUOTES)
	16 Contractors Name and Telephone: TO BE DETERMINED AT THIS TIME
	undefined_5: Off
	undefined_6: Off
	Name or Company Name: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
	Address: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
	Telephone: XXX-XXX-XXXX
	18 Name of Witness: 
	0: 
	0: PAUL FERGUSON

	1: 
	0: 
	1: 


	Witness Address1: EMPLOYEE OF LITTLE BEAR EAST ARENA
	Witness Telephone 1: 906-643-6081
	Witness Address2: 
	Witness Telephone 2: 
	Witness Address3: 
	Witness Telephone 3: 
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box3: Off
	Photographs Attached Yes: On
	No_3: On
	Check Box4: Yes
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Yes
	Check Box7: Off
	Police Report #:  23-207
	Police Report Attached Yes: On
	No_5: On
	22 Please describe in detail how the claimincident occurred attach any supporting dataRow4: ON 6/4/2023 AT APPROXIMATELY 4:45 PM -XXXXXXXXXXX WAS DRIVING RECKLESSLY IN THE FITNESS CENTER PARKING LOT.  HE LOST CONTROL ON THE GRAVEL AND THE VEHICLE HE WAS DRIVING CRASHED INTO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE LITTLE BEAR EAST FITNESS CENTER CAUSING EXTREME DAMAGE TO THE EXTERIOR OF THE BUILDING AND DAMAGE TO THE INTERIOR DRYWALL RESPECTIVELY 
	23  Submitted By: CATHERINE LAMB
	24  Title: RECREATION FACILITY MANAGER
	25  Date: 6/6/2023


